

# St Nicholas' Boys' Home

1926 – c. 1955 Other Names: • Glenroy Homes

Details

St Nicholas' Boys' Home in Glenroy was established by the Mission of St James and St John in 1926. It accommodated boys aged 5 to 14. It was closed in the mid 1950s, and boys were transferred to the St Paul's Home for Boys in Newhaven, on Phillip Island.

St Nicholas' Boys' Home in Glenroy was established by the Mission of St James and St John in 1926. It was near the site of St Agnes' Girls' Home, established the same year.

The two Homes in Glenroy were seen as important links in the 'chain of Mission Homes' envisaged by Archdeacon Lamble. Boys came to St Nicholas' from the age of six.

St Nicholas' was situated at an old homestead in Glenroy which had been vacant for the previous two years. Boys were temporarily housed at St Agnes' while the former family home was being altered.

The Manager of the Home, Mr Gawler, established a farm at St Nicholas' in 1927. A dairy established at the Boys' Home produced milk to supply all of the Mission's institutions, and employed the boys.

A recreation hall was built in 1940, due to the fundraising efforts of a St Nicholas' 'old boy'.

The boys attended school at the local Glenroy primary, along with many girls from St Agnes'.

At least six former residents of St Nicholas' lost their lives serving in World War Two.

Mr Gawler resigned from the farm in 1950 and was replaced by Mr E.L. Trayford, who had worked with Gawler previously. Trayford remained with the Mission until 1968, and he later looked back on his years at St Nicholas' and recalled how the Home, and St Agnes', were filled to overflowing during the Depression era. He remembered how the first Sunday of every month, visiting day, was eagerly anticipated by some of the boys 'fortunate' enough to have monthly visitors. On occasion, Trayford would load up his truck with boys for a trip to the beach at Brighton.

In 1946, the Mission reported that the St Agnes' and St Nicholas' Homes were to be rebuilt on the cottage system at an approximate cost of 50,000 pounds. These plans did not eventuate however.

In their history of the Mission, Monk and O'Donoghue write that St Nicholas's was condemned by the Health Department in the mid 1950s and subsequently closed.

However in January 1956, St Nicholas' Home for Boys was declared an approved children's home under the Children's Welfare Act 1954.

In 1955, the Mission reported that the Home had been demolished, and boys had been transferred to St Paul's Boys' Home in Newhaven. St Paul's had become available for the boys from St Nicholas', as its Training School for 'delinquent boys' had been closed down. It changed its name to St Paul's Home for Boys in 1956.

The sale and subdivision of the land at Glenroy made possible the purchase of land at Blackburn for the development of new cottages.

In 1997 the Mission of St James and St John became part of Anglicare Victoria. At this time, records of the Mission were transferred to Anglicare Victoria. These included records of the various orphanages, homes and other residences run by the Mission. The custodian of these records is Anglicare Victoria.

# Gallery



St Nicholas' Home

Description: B/W Photo 10x15cm; Shows Boys at Dinner St. Nicholas' Home. Daily Life



St Nicholas' Home

**Description:** B/W Photo 10x15cm; Shows Boys in the Garden at St. Nicholas' Home. Daily Life



#### Looking East Towards Hilton

**Description:** B/W Photo 10x15cm; This House Later Became St. Nicholas' Home for Boys



#### St Nicholas' Home for Boys

**Description:** B/W Photo 10x15cm; Formerly Hilton Built by J. McCutcheon. 1888. Became St. Nicholas' Home for Boys. Demolished C1960

# More info

### **Related Entries**

#### Run by

• Mission of St James and St John (1919 - 1997)

#### **Related Organisations**

- Blackburn South Cottages (1963 1988)
  Dresseds from the cale of the site of St N
- Proceeds from the sale of the site of St Nicholas' Boys' Home funded the Blackburn South Cottages. • <u>Ramoth Toddlers' Home (1927 - c. 1932)</u>
- Some children were transferred from Ramoth Toddlers' Home to St Nicholas' Boys' Home in Glenroy.

- <u>St Paul's Training School (1928 1955)</u> In 1955, St Paul's Training School was closed, and it became known as St Paul's Boys' Home. At this time, some boys were transferred to St Paul's from St Nicholas' Boys' Home in Glenroy.
- <u>St Agnes' Girls' Home (1926 1963)</u>
  St Agnes' Girls' Home was located nearby to St Nicholas' Boys' Home in Glenroy.
  St Deutle Lienze For Deute (1925 1970)
- <u>St Paul's Home For Boys (1955 1979)</u> In 1955, St Paul's Training School was closed, and it became known as St Paul's Boys' Home. At this time, some boys were transferred to St Paul's from St Nicholas' Boys' Home in Glenroy.

## Resources

- Nunn, H.W., <u>Social Services (Chapter VIII of A Short History of the Church of England in Victoria 1847-1947)</u>, Issued by the Editorial Committee of the Centenary Celebrations, Melbourne Diocese, 1947
- Christmas is party time ..., The Argus, 15 December 1952
- Testro, Ron, He's a man with a mission, The Argus, 26 July 1956
- <u>St Nicholas' Boys' Home (1926-55)</u>, Finding Records, No date. *Relevance:* See the 'List of records held by the department' section for information about records relating to St Nicholas' Boys' Home

# Records

For more information and to access your records, follow the links below:

## Records

- <u>Anglicare Victoria Records (1886 current)</u>
- 'Closed' Agency and General Correspondence Files [Charities Board of Victoria] (1923 1983)
- Voluntary Children's Homes Files (1921 1989)

You can view this page online by visiting https://www.findandconnect.gov.au/entity/st-nicholas-boys-home/